AGENDA

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FRIDAY - FEBRUARY 28, 2020 - 9:00 A.M.
SAN RAFAEL CITY HALL
1400 FIFTH AVENUE —CONFERENCE ROOM 201
SAN RAFAEL, CALIFORNIA 94901

Members of the public may speak on Agenda items.

1. OPEN PERIOD

Opportunity for the public to address the Board on items not on the agenda.
(Presentations are generally limited to 2 minutes.)

2. MINUTES OF THE MEETING
Request approval as submitted — January 31, 2020
3. PAYMENTS |
Request approval as submitted.
4. OLD BUSINESS
None scheduled.
5. NEW BUSINESS

a. Presentation and discussion on Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvement
Project (Schaaf & Wheeler).

b. Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to sign
an agreement with WorkSmart Automation, Inc., for programming services
for the South Francisco Pump Station Improvement Project.

¢. Report on adoption of investment policy.

e Adopt resolution approving the Marin County investment policy as the
investment policy for the San Rafael Sanitation District.

d. Approve Board meeting calendar for.2020.
6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
7. DIRECTOR REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
8. ADJOURNMENT '

The next scheduled meeting is March 27, 2020.




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Minutes of the Meeting .
January 31, 2020

Special Meeting City of San Rafael
Conference Room 201
1400 Fifth Avenue
San Rafael, CA 94901

The meeting was called to order at 9:33 A.M. by Chair Phillips.

Attendance Gary O. Phillips, Chair
Board: Maribeth Bushey, Secretary/Director
Katie Rice, Director
Attendance Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer
Staff’ : Karen Chew, Senior Civil Engineer ‘

Cynthia Hernandez, District Secretary

Attendance Jack F. Govi, Assistant County Counsel
Others: ‘ Jason Dow, General Manager of CMSA
Alan Zahradnik, CMSA Alternate Commissioner

1. OPEN PERIOD - No persons were present to address the Board.

2, MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 22, 2019.

MOTION by Director Rice, seconded by Chair Phillips, to approve the minutes of the
November 22, 2019, meetings as presented.

AYES: Director Rice, Chair Phillips

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: Director Bushey - Motion Carried.
3. PAYMENTS

MOTION by Director Rice, seconded by Director Bushey, to approve the payments for
November 2019 in the amount of $1,749,895.73 and December 2019 in the amount of
$1,254,894.26 for maintenance and operation of the District and for capital improvements.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None
ABSENT: None Motion Carried



4, OLD BUSINESS
None.

5. NEW BUSINESS

a. Approve the agreement regarding the withdrawal of the City of Larkspur from the
Central Marin Sanitation Agency Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement and approve
the Amended Central Marin Sanitation Agency Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
recognizing the withdrawal of the City of Larkspur,

District Manager Toy reported that in December 2018, the City of Larkspur had
submitted a letter to CMSA stating its desire to withdraw from the CMSA JPA. She also
reported that when this occurred, the SRSD Board became concerned that Larkspur had
not complied with the withdrawal process stated in Section 20 of the JPA Agreement.
She then reported that on December 20, 2019, the ad hoc committeec met to discuss the
withdrawal process and to review the draft Withdrawal Agreement regarding the
withdrawal of the City of Larkspur from the JPA. Next, Manager Toy reported that
during this meeting, the ad hoc committee had agreed that the withdrawal requirements
stated in Section 20 of the JPA Agreement had been met and -had approved the

- Withdrawal Agreement for the withdrawal of the City of Larkspur and the Amended
CMSA JPA. Director Bushey then recommended that the Board approve these
agreements.

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to approve both the
Withdrawal Agreement for the withdrawal of the City of Larkspur from the CMSA JPA

- and Amended CMSA JPA
AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None
ABSENT: None Motion Carried

b. Approve Board Meeting Schedule for 2020,

The Board discussed this matter and decided that the Board meetings should continue to
be held on the fourth Friday of each month at 9:00 A.M. ‘

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, for the Board meeting
schedule for 2020 to be set for the fourth Friday of each month at 9:00 A.M.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None
ABSENT:  None Motion Carried

6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

None.



7. DIRECTOR REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None.

8. CLOSED SESSION

a.

b.

Conference with Legal Counsel
California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)
Number of Potential Cases: One (1)

Closed Session — Opened at 9:42 A.M.
Closed Session — Ended at 9:53 A.M.

Chair Phillips reported that the Board had met in closed session to discuss anticipated
litigation and had instructed the District’s Legal Counsel to issue a letter in connection
with the anticipated litigation, '

Public Employee Performance Evaluation
California Government Code Section 54957
Title: District Manager

Closed Session — Opened at 9:53 AM,
Closed Session — Ended at 10:51 A.M.

Chair Phillips reported that the Board had met in closed session regarding employee
performance and that no action had been taken.

9. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting of January 31, 2020,
was adjourned at 10:51 A.M. The next meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation District was
scheduled for Friday, February 28, 2020, at 9:00 A.M. at San Rafael City Hall.

Respecttully submitted,

Katie Rice, Actihg Recording Secretary

ATTEST THIS 28th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2020

Gary O, Phillips, Chair




LE'LSE sisoo Apn J9eM, 985 002 6LOZ/ZLIZL ~6L0Z/SL/0L Woy "pAlg euleled - Jajep S1G HILYM TVIDINMIN NRIYIN
82'Z6Z sjsoo Aan J9lepm 985 002 6LOZ/ZLIZL - 610Z/SL/0L WOL "BAY OlSED - JAlBM SIT ¥3LYM TVIDINMTIN NIEYIN
0z'LL sisoo Ayan Jelepy 9EST 002 6L0Z/0L/ZL - 610Z/LL/0L WO “IQ USSIBPUY - JAIBA SIT H3LYM TVLIDINMIN NRIYIN
0Z'LL sysoo Ann J9lBM, 9ESZ 00T 6L0Z/EL/ZL - 6L0Z/9L/0L WOL "PAIF JAWS) 90LE - 318 SIa Y3LYM TYIDINNIN NRIYIN
[ S1s00 Ajjpn J81BAM 9862 002 6L0Z/0L/ZL - 6L0Z/LL/0L WO} "I USSIBPUY LLZ] - JOIEAN SIa ¥ILYM TVLIDINAN NRIYIN
0z'LL Sisoo AYinn J91eM 9SG 00T 6L0Z/9L/ZL - 6LOZ/LLIOL WOl "pY uoobeT i - Jalem SIa YILYM TYLIDINNIN NISYIN
00°009° saowuas Bununoodsy LLJZ Q0L Asenuer - ssoruag Gugunodoy AODNVINMOJIV HIHVIN
0ZF9 sulew a0y g s;eis dwnd ule 6S€Z 002 pJeA ~dio) au e yue} JUSLILIBILOD 8N} Jo} Sumop-an diey - suole}s dwind FHYMANYH S.NOSMOVT
LO'6E sulew a2Jo} g sels dwnd U 6SEZ 002 suopess dwind Joj saiddns - suoeys duing FHYMAHVYH S.NOSHOVT
6804 suiew 01048 s dwnd U BSEZ 002 uoneys duing 9 Jowiay] 1o} SUOTels Jieq Jue - suofiels duwng FHVYMANVH S.NOSHOVI
8L'66 swaysAs uooa|jod - W20 09€Z 00T jon} Jo}oeA MaU U daay 0} saliddns - waysAg uoldallo) FHYMAHYH S.NOSHOVT
16°508°L (08) Ayoedeoy/puod JSAG Jamas LOEy LOSY  00€ asesjol uonualel - gLOZ 10sfoid Buisivsa] Jamag AiejiueS  adld EUOISS3§0Id Y0 LSIMHLNOS NVINISOH
L1685 weanneolgnd 1ZEZ  00L swa}l a|qeysny-ucu Bulpiebal siabuey qousoop jo Bunuud - yoeannQ 2Aqnd ONI 'AINIOV NOISIA LTFHLSTTOD
oL'ez sulew 92103 @ s;gis dwnd JuURIN  6SEZ 002 uofels dwind iaiAR J2 dledal 20U} 10} SPIE0] 30U} UBPOOM - Suolels duing ONI ¥39WNT 3LV.LS NIAT0D
0S°EE0°L sulew 3010} @ sejs dwnd U BSEZ 002 pIeA -dioo ut Jajies [2sa1p Joj Waq JusWuejuoD [an) - suone}s duind syIoM [FD
LE9L sulew 2010} @ s2)s dwnd Juely 6SEZ 00T Jojesauab uone)s dwngd oosidueld YUON Joy saiiddns pue sued - suopels duing TYNILSYS
00°009°FL seowuas Buginsued  GZEZ Q0L 61-8L0Z A4 Jo} SJUBW3JE}S [BIOUBLY JO JIPNE - S301AIBS Bunnsuo) dT1ATIIVE 3013
rL6PS L (08) sasoyey pue Jewelly 90EF  Q0E 61/1L0/ZL UBnoiu} qeyal Jomas Alejues - 1030ld Juslusoe|day JaMag SaIOyRIN PUB JBWRIN “ONI INOXD HONT HIOHLS-HIFNLS/MSD
yPLYELY sspoyan suedas pue sped €802 00T JIojesauab 4 POOMUSIS PUE ‘9518 ‘0028 ‘0618 ‘FSL8 ‘0518 ‘9518 # SA0IYBA O] Siedal pue SJUBUSIUIBW - SIPIUBA TIVAVY NVS 40 ALID
Z9°Z5L'r sejoIyaA suiedas pue sued €802 00Z 0Z-610Z Ad Japenb puodss - [an) - SaPIYaA TIVAVYE NVS 40 ALID
8F'¥80'69Z'F sunean abemss ZLLy  00F 0Z/LE/E-0Z/1.0/1. Jo} sabreyo o1uas Japenb paiyy - sabiey) sowiss AINIOV NOLLV.LINYS NIIVIN TVHLNID
20°129°09€ 201u9s Jgop - Juswieas; abemss ELLY 00 0Z20Z-610ZAd 10} Wuawhed 201U 1qap [ENULE-IWLAS - 3DIMBS 1920 ADNIOV NOLLYLINYS NIMVIN TVHLNID
29°0ZL sufew 82104 seis dwnd uey  BS€Z 002 MY 10} S3AeA - SuolelS duind ONI 02 WY3LS-TVD
99°ZZ6PZL sousinsul [eIBUSD BSOZ  00L 0Z0Z Jo} [emaual sourinsut Alewud - soueINsu| [2J8UaD HLY LWOW MSRY NOLLY.LINY'S VINYOFITVYD
22709 sulew 301049 seis dwnd Juey  6G€Z 002 uonels dwingd pecijiey 1S9\ 18 anss! Jajsuet Jojeiaush pesoubelp - suonels dwnd "ONI ¥3MOd 2 TSI VINYOIITVD
00°0¢6°s V puod ulely 30104 LGLF  QOE LZ/LE/L O} 0Z/L0/Z WO PBAUCD YUOW-Z| SO USEP - Z 3seUd "Juswdopasq weibold JUsWssassy UoRIpuo) Uel 82104 ONI SNOLLITTOS GV2 VINYOSITYD
LEELL saiddns pue juswdinba fajes G9€Z 002 sano|6 Jaqqnu - Aiajes SYOLNGRILSIA SME
05°6LE°L saiddns pue juswdinbs flajes G967 002 lopajap seb - Aaes SHYOLNGRILSIA SME
8Z'Z6L sweysAs uonoaloo - WR0 09€Z . 002 O} JOJOBA MU 10} S3U0D pue SuBIS yIom peol - Wwaskg uoRosjio] IIINYTS FAVIRIEVE VIV AT
peLEL'L swaysAs uonoaylod - WO 09€Z 002 3T} JOJOBA MBU JO} S3UOT- pUE SUBIS YoM PEO] - WAJSAS U0RD3Y0D FOAYIS FAVIRIEVE VIV AvE
00°Z5€ sulew 20104 sejs dwnd UIBW  6SEZ 00T LZ/L0/E-0Z/LO/E 99} [emaual Juuad [enuue uojels dwnd 0Ipad Ues - suonels dung SIT INFWIDVYNVIN ALITVND IV VIHV AvE
09999 somues suoydsje]l $€SZ 001 0Z/E0/L-6 H/0/Z L Wol 291nss auoyd (90 - 3oKas auoydajel ALITIGON L2LY
LE'LET'E sowuas auoydapl ¥ESZ  00L 0Z/1.0/L-61/Z0/6 Woy siajelp pue suoness duwind Joj saul| pue| - 20A3S auoydajel 2968, LRIV
0z'0¥Z sowuss suoydajal +£5Z 001 0Z/61/L-6L/0Z/Z| Wol YSIND 0} sia[elp uoness dwind - sonag auoydsjal 199t LRLY
0Z°0¥Z sopuss suoydsiel #€5Z 004 6L/6L/ZL-BL/0Z/L L Woll YSIND 0 Siafelp uohels dwnd - salusg auoydaja L 199%. L2LV
£8°8¢cL suuopun LZOZ 002 0Z0z/SL/L Buipua aoiales Apjaam - suuojun SIDIAYIS WHOFINN HEVIWVHY
£2°8cL suuogun LZ0Z 002 0Z0Z/g0/L Buipua aoinias Apjaam - suuopun SIIINHTS WHOSINA HIVINVEY
£8°85L suuogun LZ0Z  00Z 0z02/L071 Butpus o1as Apj@am - suuojun SIDINYTS WHOSINI HEVYWVEY
£8°8cL suuojun 1Z0Z 002 610z/52/Z1 Buipua sowuas Apj@am - SLLIOHUN STIINGTS WHOSINN HEVYIWVEY
£8°ErL suuogun 120z 002 6L0Z/gL/ZL Buipua so1uss Apjaam - sulogun SIIAYIS WHOLINN HHVINVHY
20°469 sspiysA suedal pue sued €802 00T $G 184 ¥ON} JO} PIRIYSPUM - S3IYIA SSYT9 ¥VLS TIV
Junowy Swep JUNeadY #1100y SSBJD owsly sakedziopuap

: 020z ‘1€ Auenuer - 0202 *} Aenuer

ASVYIWIANS INTFHAVL

1ORILSIT NOILYLINYS TIVIVY NVS



PeLZI006’F §

§LT06'FL siew s0l0) g SIS dwnd Julew 8552 002 S 2RI 104 UBRIDS |INK - suonelg dung INENOILYIWO LN LY NSHHOM
st SuRW 20404 % 5,215 dwnd QuiBN 8582 002 JojIauab ajgeied J0; dwe| - suolElg dwng ATHLNS QLAY HLD ANV TGOOM
L6°SE suew souo) g &6 dwnd QUIBN 6552 00Z syue) [an} 205 as0Y - SUOEEIS dwnd ATNS 010 HLI ONY IIOOM
69LE2°G SWRISAS YOROBICD - W2 0882 00T SHIMUF JBPPEI 20} POI SAONUNUGD - WBISAS LoRs||o] OTT STRILSNAN! 0DIM
115 surew aoJo) g §2)5 dwnd QUIBN 65EE 00T suone;s duwind je subis Jop Bupined - suonelg duing Alddns 92479 ? SINSNOINOD S3LYM
rZ'se Swayshs Uohoaflon - WRD 09€Z 00T anusay ana19 Bupdg uo auy Jamas 103 saiddns Buppew - WelsAg uoasliod AlddNS 9019 ® SINSNOLSWOD HILVYM
2£'G6E swaysAs uodslios - WG 09EZ 002 BNUBRY BIUS[EA LZ 12 Iieda) 10ds o) sBumy - WSAS UoKDa0) ATddNS 9079 ® SLININOIINOD HELLYM
B0'ZHE soyuTs BUOUGSL PESZ  00L GL/0Z/Z L6 L/LZ/ 1L SH0)d8] JO) SONISS SSBIRIM - SVINAS auoydala ) SSTTIIM NOZIMIA
00°9¢Z (08} BIAE3DQ) 7 DAY/ PUBIDOOAA  BEEF  00C sBuzog 305 o) UL jUaURPEROIIUS - 4|S PUBIPOCA LINFHAYS TLVHOIHOD Y¥NVYE S
00'0ZL suondyosyns pue sdiysivquiaw  LELZ  00% $H2aM § J0} [BMAUSI [BUINOI JUBPUIdapL| UL - SUCRELISING ANFHAYL TLVEHOSHOD YNYE S}
8ire sulew 32005 @ 5,748 dwnd U 8GET 00T Sd PROJISH ISSAA 12 [[5M 19M LI UE) 1O} BADJIS UNIs30:d Sim - suonels dwng INTWA VS FLVEOSHO0D YNYE ST
£8'62 sujew 9203 9 S35 dwnd QUi 6SEZ 00T sua|es) [2rY [H$BIP L0 S50 PUSIXS O} PAST SJaAmS - suofe)g diting LANTHAYD ZLIVHOSH0D MNYE Si1
oLes sulew s.04 g seis dwnd Uil BSEZ 00C Sd PRGIIEY 159/ Ye ey [|am 1om s0; saiddns - suolels duing AINTNAY ALVHOLHOD MNYE S1
817961 sulew aouo04 g 5215 dwnd -uley  6SEZ 00T Jabueyo A1ajeq Jejos - sueneig duing INTWAYS SLVHOLHOD MNYE SN
srgt SH[BW 82104 8 $,B15 dwind suew 6567 O0Z 1aBieys Asneq SO 10} 9JJED UOISUSIXS - suopeis duind INTNAYD LYHOSHOD MNYE SN
gt SWBLE 20l0} ¢ 515 dund Uy 6687 O0Z mbleyy Areed £2[0s 10} B[GED UojsUaXe - suogms dund INTRAVD 2LVHOSHOD MNVE S
O0'ES suw 32104 °g SIS dind e BSEZ 00T suonms dwnd 12 97d Joj ssUaeq - suopelg dwing ININAYL TLYHOSHOD MNYE SN
LZ'E8E SwaisAs HOOBYCD - WO 0S€Z  0OE 3ru} Jepen Jo) Led jBAIMS - WBISAS UoNDaleD) ININAVS TLYHOSHOD NV 511
SEEBLE sulew anuoj g s,g)s duind quiBly BSEZ 002 Sd BISWARY 103 UORE([2ISUI pIEOG BOBUSIU) - SUCHEIS duing ONI SINFWNHISNI WVISTIL
28°9r€ sojddns dous 2 9040 EE1Z  00) saiddns soyo "osiw - sanddng 0130 ONI STTIVLS
L6982 SWaisAs UORDBID - WO 0982 00T GLLZHW PUB '9BZZHIN ‘PZLLHIN 10} [EMeua) QUELem PUB adiAes 193] - WalSAS uogaaiod oUf ‘SWoLSAS JSACOEUS
orEeroL (08} BINEID0 3 3NY/|d PURIPOOM, BEEP  O0E BH/LE/ZL YBnoa) saoles Supasuibua - dis "aAY PUBIPOCA ONI UEIFHM 2 Y YHOS
00°2E6'2 SUEW 3010§ ¥ 5816 dwnd quieyy BSEZ 00F uoRIg duing g uassepuy Joj duind mau - suones dund 02 FOINYTS MIVdFH dNNd
EPLEO2L siso> Qyan supsiy GeSZ 00T 0Z0Z Aenuer-gL0Z 93 suohels dund oy 39INAS WP - Jamag GZOTIZE08FT /e TR
80°LTL6L 51500 QAN uPB|T  GEST 00T SL0Z 990-A0N Suclels duind Joj VRS JLP3IS - Jamod §-T0Z9Z608FZ /8 RO
198 suiew s2105 ' SIS dwnd uely  6SEZ 00T uonEls dwing peoljiey 1San 1e Jaep ocex 1o Asyed - suogeis duind SN1d SAYTLLVE - NRI3d
580k swelsAs UogoaoT - IR0 D9EZ 00T 151200} J0} SRLENEG D ~ SWRISAS LoRae|j0) SiT1d STITLLYE - NI
667975°L SWISAS UOKRIYICD ~ RO 09EZ 00T . Joru] 10j02A MaU foy sadid - swAsAG UONBIOD SFIVS INFWGINDT NIMO
SFEY'E sulew 20J0} 9 5,295 dwnd uEw 6567 Q0T paek -d1o7) 12 HUES [30} 10} pue uogelg duind Z# ¥I0083 10} [N} [352IP PIAD pal - suonelg ditng WIE10YL3d Avd HLHON
00’059 S30IMGS AQRURIS €967 00T 19905 Y PUB Yliid 18 30IASS - AQPURiS DN ‘FIINYIS HIMIS HFLOOH-OLOM NRAYIN
00052 SICINGS AQPUENS  £982  00Z “BAI BUIEIRD G 0} papucdsal - Aqpuesg NI TIINGTS HEAMIS HFLOOH-0LOE NRAVIN
00°056 sweyshs uonsallon « WO 08z 002 anuany LMY OZ: 18 incueal Sjoy POl ||BISu - WBlsAS UONoaeD INT‘THAYSS YIMIS JFLO0H-0L0H NRIVHN
6218 sj500 AlGh JIBM 9ESZ 00T BLOZ/OL/ZL - 5LOZ/L /0L WCI) "3y PUBIPOOAA - 1918/ SIT HZLYM TVAIDINDIN NRIYIN
6218 s1500 A Jo1RA 9EGZ 002 GLOZ/OLZL - BLOT/LL/OL WO IS SWIWS ~ 13i2pA SIT HZLYM TVIIDINNIN NISYN
o0zTLL sisoo Aan Jajepn 9GS2 00Z SLOZ/OL/ZL ~ 6L0Z/LLIGL oy dWnd James gZ )T U0 BISIATY - 1B SIT HRLYM TVIIDINMIN NRIYIN
0Z'LL $js00 ARN BN 9ESZ 00T BLOZ/ALIZL - 6LOZT/OL/0) Wou "D 0ipad Ues Wi - JBIBM SIQ HILYM TVSIDINAN NIEVI
0Z'LL sisoo Ainn Jalens  9ESZ 00T BLOZ/ALZL - BLOZ/AL/DL WO "I YO00e3d - JSIBM SIG TTL VM TYIDINMIN NRIYIN
o0ziL S1500 AN IMBA 9862 002 S10Z/342L - 610T/LL/0L WOl ‘pY CIPSg URS N - JBlEA SIG HFLYM TVIDINNIN NRSTN
L6'E0F s3500 AlIn Bl G5 002 SLOZ/ELTE - 5LOTIGL/0L WY PEOY ONIIOW - 1SIBA $K7 HZLYM TVSIDINAW NRIVIN
L2865k sjsen AHIBh Jalep, 9E5Z 002 SLOTELZL - 6LOZ/BL/0L WOl PAJE OIsDURL T - JBJeM, I HILYM TYAIDINAIN NRIYIW
0z'iL sjsoo Al akepy 9EGZ 00E BLOZZLTL - 610Z/51/0L WoK) "PAID 0ISIDUEIL I - J21BM SIT HRALYM TYSIDINIIN NRIYIK




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 5.a.

DATE: February 28, 2020
- TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District
FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer ?7
SUBJECT: Report on Proposals Received for Design and Construction Related Services

for the Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvement Project and Adopt Resolution
to Execute a Professional Services Agreement

SUMMARY:

At the November 2019 Board meeting, the Board édopted a resolution to execute a Professional
Services Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for design and construction related services for the
Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvement Project.

The Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvement Project includes sewer facilities on B Street,
between First and Taylor streets; Woodland Avenue, between B & Taylor streets and Warner
Court, Woodland Place, and Octavia Street (please refer to the attached site map). They are
residential streets that were built in the late 1940°s. B Street has several commercial businesses,
including Safeway and the City’s Community Center and playground.

Woodland Place is very flat and is bound on the south by Woodland Avenue and on the north by
the drainage channel, which parallels Albert Park Lane. The streets can become inundated
during severe flooding events. In general, the floor elevations of most of the homes are 12
inches to 18 inches above the street level.

The homes on Woodland Place sewer to the back of their properties into a 6-inch sewer in a 5-
foot utility easement on the west side of Woodland Place and into another 6-inch sewer in a 10-
foot utility easement on the east side of Woodland Place. However, there are structures built on
top of these easements. Both sewer pipes are in poor condition with offset joints, cracks, and
root intrusions. They are also flat and shallow, approximately 2.5 feet deep, and hold standing
water, which increases the chances of having sewer backups. Our maintenance crew cleans these
lines up to six times a year, and they have found grease, grit, and black water, which results from
standing water, ,

Our focus at this Board meeting is Woodland Place. Schaaf & Wheeler will be presenting
various alternatives to improve the sewer for the properties on Woodland Place. One alternative
is to abandon the sewers in the easements and install a new sewer main in the roadway on
Woodland Place; thus, the sewer laterals will need to be turned around and rerouted to the
roadway. Various funding options will also be presented for this alternative.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Board shall discuss and provide direction to staff.

Attachments: Site Map



T e e
2lf OCTAVIA ST
replace pipe

WOODLAND AVENUE SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
SITE MAP

[ ‘Safewa;_ I
[

A @w---m{ 700528

B Street Community
Center & Playground

Existing Sewer

in 5-ft E nt S
e Existing Sewer in

WOODLAND PL 10-ft Easement

Alternative to

install new pipe Woodiand Ave

Install new pipe to
Redirect flow from
Warner Ctto B St

Triiii& Lutheran|
~—Church

~0

Davidson Middle
School




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 5.b.

DATE: February 28, 2020

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer FZ:

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to Sign

an Agreement with WorkSmart Automation, Inc., for Programming Services
for the South Francisco Pump Station Improvement Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to sign an Agreement with
WorkSmart Automation, Inc., for programming services for the South Francisco Pump Station
Improvement Project.

BACKGROUND:

At the September 2018 Board meeting, the Board awarded the South Francisco Pump Station
Improvement Project to JMB Construction, Inc. The contract specifications did not include the
programming portion of work because District staff wanted this work to be performed by a
consultant who is familiar with the programming of its pump stations.

Since WorkSmart Automation, Inc., has performed all the programming for our Cayes Main
Pump Station, Glenwood Pump Station, Loch Lomond Marina Pump Station, and San Pedro
Pump Station and installed the District’s SCADA (Supervisory Control Data Acquisition)
programming, staff asked WorkSmart to provide a proposal for the programming work for the
South Francisco Pump Station Improvement Project.

ANALYSIS:

WorkSmart’s staff has been responsive, has offered recommendations based upon their own
experiences, and has performed extra work at fair costs.

WorkSmart has offered a proposal to perform the programming work for the South Francisco
Pump Station Improvement Project at a lump-sum cost of $32,000.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This project will be funded under the Pump Station and Force Main Capital Improvements
Program from the current FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 Budgets.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the resolution authorizing the District Manager/District
Engineer to sign an Agreement with WorkSmart Automation, Inc., for programming related -
services for the South Francisco Pump Station Improvement Project.

Attachments: Resolution and Agreement



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
RESOI.UTION NO. 20-1199

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT MANAGER/DISTRICT ENGINEER
TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH WORKSMART AUTOMATION, INC., FOR
PROGRAMMING RELATED SERVICES FOR THE
SOUTH FRANCISCO PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $32,000 '

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION
DISTRICT, COUNTY OF MARIN, hereby resolves as follows:

The District Manager/District Engineer is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf
of the San Rafael Sanitation District, a Professional Services Agreement with
WorkSmart Automation, Inc., for programming related services for the South Francisco
Pump Station Improvement Project, a copy of which is hereby attached and by this
reference made a part heredf.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation
District Board of Directors held on the 28th day of Eebruary 2020 by the foliowing vote,

to wit:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

Gary O. Phillips, Chair

ATTEST:

Katie Rice, Acting Secretary




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR PROGRAMMING RELATED SERVICES FOR THE
SOUTH FRANCISCO PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

This Agreement is made and entered into this 28th day of February 2020 by and between
the SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT (hereinafter "DISTRICT") and WORKSMART
AUTOMATION, INC. (hereinafter “CONSULTANT”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has selected WORKSMART AUTOMATION, INC., to
perform the required programming related services for the “South Francisco Pump Station
Improvement Project” (hereinafter “PROJECT”) for the DISTRICT; and

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has offered to render certain specialized professional

services in connection with this PROJECT.

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows:
1, DEFINITIONS.

DISTRICT and CONSULTANT have outlined the scope of services to be provided, and related expenses

as described in Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated herein.
2. PROJECT COORDINATION

A. DISTRICT. The District vManager/District Engineer shall be the
representative of the DISTRICT for all purposes under this Agreement and is hereby designated as the
PROJECT MANAGER for the DISTRICT, and said PROJECT MANAGER shall supervise all aspects of

the progress and execution of this Agreement.

B. CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT shall assign a single PROJECT
DIRECTOR to have overall responsibilify for the progress and exccution of this Agreement for
CONSULTANT, DAN JONES is hereby designated as the PROJECT DIRECTOR for CONSULTANT.
Should circumstances or conditions subsequent to the execution of this Agreement require a substitute
PROJECT DIRECTOR for any reason, the CONSULTANT shall notify the DISTRICT within ten (10)

business days of the substitution.




3. DUTIES OF CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT shal! perform the duties and/or provide services as follows; the
CONSULTANT agrees to provide professional services as a Programming Consultant to perform work
outlined in the Proposal from CONSULTANT dated February 12, 2020, marked Exhibit "A", attached
hereto, and incorporated herein by this reference. The CONSULTANT agrees to be available and

perform the work specified in this agreement in the time frame as specified and as shown in Exhibit "A".
4. DUTIES OF THE DISTRICT
" DISTRICT shall perform the duties as described and incorpérated herein.
5. COMPENSATION

For the full performance of the services described herein by CONSULTANT,
DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT on a lump-sum basis for services rendered as described in Exhibit
"A" attached and incorporated herein. The total payment will not exceed the amount of $32,000 as shown

on the Proposal Budget, set out in Exhibit “A”.

Payment will be made upon receipt by PROJECT MANAGER of an invoice
submitted by CONSULTANT, |

6. TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution until the Project

is complete.
7. TERMINATION

A. Discretionary. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause

upon thirty (30) days written notice mailed or personally delivered to the other party.

B. Cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon ten
(10) days written notice mailed or personally delivered to the other party, and the notified party's failure
to cure or correct the cause of the termination notice, to the reasonable satisfaction of the party giving

such notice, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of said notice.

C. Effect of Termination. Upon receipt of notice of termination, neither
party shall incur additional obligations under any provision of this Agreement without the prior written

consent of the other,

D. Return of Documents. Upon termination, any and all DISTRICT
documents or materials provided to CONSULTANT and any and all of CONSULTANT’s documents
and materials prepared for or relating to the performance of its duties under this Agreement, shall be
delivered to DISTRICT as soon as possible, but not later than thirty (30) days after termination.

Agreement « 2




- 8. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The written documents and materials prepared by the CONSULTANT in
connection with the performance of its duties under this Agreement shall be the sole property of
DISTRICT. DISTRICT may use said property for any purpose, including projects not contemplated by

this Agreement.
9. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

Upon reasonable notice, CONSULTANT shall make available to DISTRICT, or
its agent, for inspection and audit, all documents and materials maintained by CONSULTANT in.
connection with its performance of its duties under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall fully
cooperate with DISTRICT or its agent in any such audit or inspection.

10, ASSIGNABILITY

The parties agree that they shall not assign or transfer any intetest in this
Agreement nor the performance of any of their respective obligations hereunder, without the prior written
consent of the other party, and any attempt to so assign this Agreement or any rights, duties, or

obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect.
11. INSURANCE

A. During the term of this Agreemeni, CONSULTANT shall maintain, at no

expense to DISTRICT, the following insurance policies:

1. A commercial general liability insurance policy in the minimum
amount of one million ($1,000,000) dollars per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate for death, bodily
injury, personal injury, or property damage;

2. An automobile liability (owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles)

insurance poiicy in the minimum amount of one million ($1,000,000) dollars per occurrence;

3. If any licensed professional performs any of the services required to
be performed under this Agreement, a professional liability insurance policy in the minimum amount of
one million ($1,000,000) dollars to cover any claims arising out of the CONSULTANT's performance of

services under this Agreement.

B. The insurance coverage required of the CONSULTANT by Section 11, A.

shall also meet the following requirements:

Agreement « 3



1. The insurance shall be primary with respect to any insurance or
coverage maintained by DISTRICT and shall not call upon DISTRICT's insurance or coverage for any

contribution;

2. Except for professional liability insurance, the insurance policies

shall be endorsed for contractual liability and personal injury;

3. Except for professional liability insurance, the insurance policies
shall be specifically endorsed to include the DISTRICT, its officers, agents, and employees as

additionally named insureds under the policies;

4, CONSULTANT shall provide to PROJECT MANAGER, (a)
Certificates of Insurance evidencing the insurance covel'age required herein and (b) specific
endorsements naming DISTRICT, its officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds under the

policies;

5. The insurance policies shall provide that the insurance carrier shall
not cancel or terminate said insurance policies except upon thirty (30) days written notice to DISTRICT’s
PROJECT MANAGER;

6. If the insurance is written on a Claims Made Form, then, following
termination of this Agreement, said insurance coverage shall survive for a period of not less than five

years as long as the insurance is reasonably affordable and available;

7. The insurance policies shall provide for a retroactive date of

placement coinciding with the effective date of this Agreement;

8. The insurance shall be approved as to form and sufficiency by
PROJECT MANAGER and the County Counsel,

C. If it employs any person, CONSULTANT shall maintain Workers’
Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance, as required by the State Labor Code and other
applicable laws and regulations, and as necessary to protect both CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against
all liability for injuries to CONSULTANT’s officers and employees.

D.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions exceeding $20,000 in
CONSULTANT’s insurance policies must be declared to and approved by the PROJECT MANAGER
and the County Counsel. At District’s option, the deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to
DISTRICT shall be reduced or eliminated to DISTRICT's satisfaction, or CONSULTANT shall procure a
bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, attorney’s fees,

and defense expenses,

Agreement » 4




12. INDEMNIFICATION

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, release, and hold harmless DISTRICT, its
officers, and employees against any claim, demand, suit, judgment, loss, liability, or expense of any kind,
including attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting in any way from any negligent acts or omissions or
negligence of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANTs officers, agents, and employees in the performance

of their duties and obligations under this Agreement.
13. NONDISCRIMINATION

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the
basis of age, sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, or disability in connection with or related

to the performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement.
14. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS

CONSULTANT shall use due professional care to observe and comply with all
applicable Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations in the performance of its
duties and obligations under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall perform all services under this

Agreement in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations.
15, NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

DISTRICT and CONSULTANT do not intend, by any provision of this
Agreement, to create in any third party any benefit or right owed by one party, under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, to the other party, '

16. NOTICES

All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given under
this Agreement, including any notice of change of address, shall be in writing and given by personal
delivery or deposited with the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed to the parties
intended to be notified. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of personal delivery or, if mailed,

upoh the date of deposit with the United States Postal Service. Notice shall be given as follows:

TO DISTRICT: Ms, Doris Toy (Project Managet)
San Rafael Sanitation District
111 Morphew Street
San Rafael, CA 94901

TO CONSULTANT:  Mr. Dan Jones (Project Director)
WorkSmart Automation, inc.
5700 Callister Avenue
P.O. Box 19642
Sacramento, CA 953819

Agreement- 5




17. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT
For the purposes and for the duration of this Agreement, CONSULTANT, its
officers, agents, and employees shall act in the capacity of an Independent Contractor, and not as
employees of the DISTRICT. CONSULTANT and DISTRICT expressly intend and agree that the status
of CONSULTANT, its officers, agents, and employees be that of an Independent Contractor and not that
of an employee of DISTRICT.

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT -- AMENDMENTS
. A. The terms and conditions of this Agreement, all exhibits attached, and all
documents expressly incorporated by reference represent the entire Agreement of the parties with respect
to the subject matter of this Agreement.

B. This written Agreement shall supersede any and all prior agreements, oral or -
written, regarding the subject matter between the CONSULTANT and the DISTRICT.

C. No other agreement, promise, or statement, written or oral, relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement shall be valid or binding except by way of a written amendment to this
Agreement.

D. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be altered or modified
except by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by the CONSULTANT and the DISTRICT.

E. If any conflicts arise between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
the terms and conditions of the attached exhibits or the documents expressly incorporated by reference,

the terms and conditions of this Agreement shalf control,

19. SET-OFF AGAINST DEBTS
CONSULTANT agrees that DISTRICT may deduct from any payment due to
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any monies which CONSULTANT owes DISTRICT under any
ordinance, agreement, contract, or resolution for any unpaid taxes, fees, licenses, assessments, unpaid

checks, or other amounts,

20. WAIVERS

The waiver by either party of any breach or violation of any term, covenant, or
condition of this Agreement or of any ordinance, law, or regulation, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of
any other term, covenant, condition, ordinance, law, or regulation or of any subsequent breach or
violation of the same or other term, covenant, condition, ordinance, law, or regulation. The subsequent
acceptance by either party of any fee, performance, or other consideration which may become due or
owing under this Agreement, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding breach or violation by
the other party of any term, condition, or covenant of this Agreement or any applicable law, ordinance, or

regulation.

Agreement « 6



21 CITY BUSINESS LICENSE/OTHER TAXES
CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain during the duration of this Agreement,
a CITY business license as required by the San‘ Rafael Municipal Code. CONSULTANT shall pay any
and all State and Federal taxes and any other applicable taxes. CONSULTANT’s taxpayer identification
number is 68-0486438, and CONSULTANT certifies under penalty of perjury that said taxpayer

identification number is correct.

22.  APPLICABLE LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day,

month and year first above written,

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT CONTRACTOR

WORKSMART AUTOMATION, INC.

Doris Toy, P.E.
District Manager/District Engineer

ATTEST: By:

Dan Jones

Title: Director of Business Development

Cynthia Hernandez
District Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jack F. Govi
Assistant County Counsel

Agreement-7




Hom( MART WorkSmart Automation, Inc.

UTOMATION.«  Software Automation Specialists
CREATIVE 5[ SOLUTIONS PO BOX 19642 phone (916) 454_1718
~ Sacramento, CA 95819
&

February 12, 2020 Quote: SRV20-3185

EXHIBIT

District Manager/District Engineer

San Rafael Sanitation District

Doris.Toy@cityofsanrafael.org A
FROM: Dan Jones

WorkSmart Automation, Inc.

SUB: Quotation for Services — South Francisco Pump Station Programming Services
Hi Doris,

Pursuant to your request, WaorkSmart Automation is pleased to submit this quotation for the above
mentioned project. This quotation was generated based the contract documents we received from you
via email on February 5, 2020.

Overview

WorkSmart Automation shall supply the programming and assist with startup of the PLC and OIT Panel
system in accordance with the contract documents specified in Section 16100 — Electrical Requirements
and 17200 — Control Descriptions. We shall utilize our own licensed copies of the development software
required to program these devices.

The following outlines WorkSmart's scope of work for this project:

Programming
The programming scope of tasks for WorkSmart Automation involves the following:

e PLC Ladder Logic Programming (4 PLCs)
Provide programming for four (4) new PLCs in order to provide the control features specified and
required to operate the new pump station and as specified. The four PLCs are as follows:

Main South Francisco Pump Station PLC (referred to as SFPS)
Pump 1 Control PLC
Pump 2 Control PLC
Pump 3 Control PLC

o I b

The SFPS PLC shall execute programming logic that monitors Pumping Pit levels / float switches.
Based on the level of the Pumping Pits, the SFPS PLC will send requests to each of the three
Pump Control PLCs to start and stop their respective pumps as needed.

The Pump Control PLCs will execute their own programming logic that monitors the status of the
float switches. This allows the individual Pump Control PLC to start/stop its own pump in the
event of SFPS PLC failure. Each Pump Control PLC essentially replaces a large portion of the
hardwired relay logic that was present in each pump control cabinet in past SRSD Pump Station
designs.



+  OIT Programming
Provide programming for the new OIT {operator interface terminal) located at the new MCC
panel to provide graphical contral, alarm and indication features specified and required to
operate the new pump station locally.

s+ SCADA Programming
Provide programming and configuration for the FactoryTalk SCADA system to provide graphical
control, alarm, and indication features specified and required to operate the new pump station
from a remote location such as the corporate yard.

Testing
A representative of WorkSmart Automation will attend and participate in the required testing as specified
and required for pump station operation for the following specified tests:

« Factory Test
workSmart Automation will attend and participate in the factory testing as specified and
required for pump station operation.

« Field Functional Acceptance Test (FAT)
WorkSmart Automation will participate in the field functional acceptance testing as specified and
required for pump station operation.

Training

WorkSmart Automation shall provide operator/user training on the devices we program (PLC, OIT, and
SCADA) during a 1 —day visit consisting of two sessions. The first session shall be on-site at the pump
station where we will review the program logic and discuss the operation and review the OIT graphics and
how to operate the station using the available OiT displays. The second session will be on-site at the Corp
yard where we will review the SCADA displays for the pump station and how to operate the station using
the available SCADA displays.

Project Meetings
WaorkSmart Automation will attend up to three {3) project meetings on-site as requested by CONTRACTOR
or DISTRICT throughout the course of the project,

Warranty

WorkSmart Automation will warrant our programming and SCADA configuration for a period of ane year
from the date of acceptance as specified. We will correct any programming errors uncovered during this
time at no additional charge. This warranty excludes operational changes and new features or changes to
the PLC program, OIT and SCADA displays.

Assumptions / Exclusions
e WorkSmart will contract directly with owner (BISTRICT).
¢ No hardware or installation of hardware or wiring is included in this quote,
& No PLC or OIT programming and development software licensing is included in this quote.

SRV20-3185 {SRSD - South Francisco Pump Station)Page 2 of 3 2/12/2020




¢ All Testing Plans and Testing Forms required throughout the course of the project are to be
provided by the CONTRACTOR.

s All Training manuals and study materials required for training throughout the course of the
project are to be provided by the CONTRACTCR.

e  No O&M material or Submittals are included in this quote. We assume these tasks will be
provided by the CONTRACTOR.

= Any work requested outside the scope of this project will be quoted separately at WorkSmart's
current labor and travel rates. _

+  WorkSmart carries $1,000,000 in General liability insurance, $1,000,000 in Professional Liability,
and $1,000,000 in Automobile Liability insurance for our clients. Amounts requested above
these limits may require a change in contract price.

Total costs for these services shall be $32,000 lump sum.
Please give me a call if you have any questions.
Best regards,

Dan Jones
Director of Business Development
WorkSmart Automation, Inc.

$RV20-3185 (SRSD - South Francisco Pump Station}Page 3 of 3 2/12/2020




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

Agenda Item 5c.
DATE: February 28, 2020
TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District
FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer W7

SUBJECT: Adoption of Investment Policy

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve and adopt the Statement of Investment Policy, FY 2019-2020 of the County of
Marin as the investments policy for the San Rafael Sanitation District.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The California Government Code Section 53600 requires all California special districts to
adopt an investment policy annually. The District utilizes the services of the Marin County
to collect its revenues, disburse expenses, and to invest its cash not required for immediate
use. The County of Marin invests all of its cash and cash held in custody for other Marin
County special districts in accordance with its Statement of Investment Policy adopted
annually by the Marin County Board of Supervisors. The Marin County investment policy
meets the requirements of the California Government Code as well as County-specific
requirements such as the Nuclear Freeze Ordinance Measure A approved by Marin voters in
1986. The Marin County investment policy is audited annually for conformance with its
stated policy and California law.

The District maintains all of its cash with the County of Marin’s pooled cash and
investments. Given that the District does not independently manage investments, the
District’s investments, therefore, conform with those of the County of Marin to the extent of
its pro-rata share of the aggregate investment pool. Accordingly, the investments policy of
the County of Marin effectively serves as the investments policy of the District.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None.

Attachments: District Resolution
County of Marin Statement of Investment Policy, FY 2019-2020



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. 20-1198

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
TO APPROVE THE INVESTMENT POLICY
OF THE COUNTY OF MARIN AS THE INVESTMENT POLICY
FOR THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

WHEREAS, all California Special Districts are required by the California Government
Code to adopt an investment policy annually; and

WHEREAS, the District does not independently manage investments but rather utilizes
the services of the County of Marin for most of its cash management needs; and

WHEREAS, the County of Marin invests the District’s cash as well as all other cash in
its custody in accordance with its Statement of Investment Policy adopted annually by the Marin
County Board of Supervisors and audited annually by the County’s external auditors; and

WHEREAS, the District’s investments are its pro-rata share of the aggregate Marin
County pool. .

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED to approve and adopt the
Statement of Investment Policy, FY 2019-20 of the County of Marin as the investment policy for
the San Rafael Sanitation District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Rafael Sanitation
District at a regular meeting held on February 28, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

Gary O. Phillips, Chair

ATTEST:

Katie Rice, Acting Secretary



COUNTY OF MARIN

Roy Given, CPA
DIRECTOR

Mina Martinovich, CPA
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

Marin Counly Civic Center
3501 Civic Center Drive
Suite 225

San Rafael, CA 94903
415473 615471

415 473 3680 F

CRS Dial 711
www.marincounty.org/dof

e DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE.

Excellent and responsive fiscal leadership.

Board of Supervisors . December 17, 2019 A P P H @ M E

County of Marin
Clivic Center : ' _ [ DEC 172019

San Rafael. CA 94903

@

MARIN COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Subject: 2019/2020 Annual Statement of Investment Policy
Dear Board Members:

Recommendation: Pursuant to Government Code Section 53646, the following are
submitted for review and approval:
e 2019/2020 Annual Statement of Investment Policy for funds managed by the
Treasurer's office for the County, schools, college and Special Districts; and

e 2019/2020 Marin County Long-Term Investment Pool Policy for funds managed
by the Treasurer’s office for the Marin County General Fund,;

Summary: There are no changes to the 2019/2020 Annual Statement of Investment
Policy; it has been reviewed and monitored by the County Treasury Oversight

- Committee. The committee’s membership is listed below. The authority for the

committee and their responsibilities are contained in Government Codes sections
27130-27137.

Additionally, the 2019/2020 Annual Statement of Investment Policy is reviewed and
monitored monthly by Fitch Ratings, an independent rating agency. Their report is
attached. We continue with a rating of AAA/S1. The County’s AAA rating has been
maintained since 1994, The rating received is reflective of the outstanding work of the
Treasury unit.

Alternative Recommendation: N/A
Reviewed by: [X] Finance Department [ ] N/A
[ 1 County Counsel [X] N/A
[X] Administrator [ 1NA
pectfully submitted,
Roy Give
Director of Finance




ce: Treasury Oversight Commiittee:
Matthew Hymel, County Administrator
Dan Eilerman, Alternate Representative, County Administrator
Mary Jane Burke, Marin County Superintendent of Schools
Nancy Lynch, Reed Union School District Superintendent
Jean Bonander, Public Member
Roy Given, Director of Finance
Marin County School Districts
Special Districts
MCERA




STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY

iﬂzzjagﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂnﬁa!a:n.....

[ 1]
gomnarstittitnin,,
a

.. (1] [ 1) &
..' eat® Fyant Puget Vagt Paped e i’.
o 0

COUNTY OF MARIN %/

Department of Finance
Roy Given, Director

Fiscal Year 2019-2020




I

RN

5 &N

11,
12,
13,
14,
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OBJECTIVES
PARTICIPANTS
AUTHORIZED PERSONS

. BIDS & PURCHASE OF SECURITIES

TERM

ALLOWED INVESTMENTS

PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS

BROKERS

WITHDRAWALS

SWAPS |

LOSSES

DELIVERY & SAFEKEEPING
APPORTIONMENT OF INTEREST & COSTS
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

AUDITS o

REVIEW

REPORTS

INVESTMENT POLICY

TREASURY OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
DISASTER/BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN

Page

ECREC T - N T -]

@ © © o

o ©

10
10
10

10

M




COUNTY OF MARIN

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PoOLICY

Under the authority delegated to the Director of Finance by the Board of Supervisors and in
accordance with the Californla Government Code, the following sets forth the investment
policy of the County of Marin:

l OBJECTIVES:

All funds on deposit in the County Treasury shall be invested In accordance with the
California Government Code Sections 53600 et seq. and Sections 53639 et seq. to ensure:

(a) Preservation of capital through high quality investments and by
continually evaluating the credit of financial Institutions approved for
investment transactions, and securities considered and held in safekeeping;

(b) Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to enable the participants and
other depositors to meet their operating requirements;

(c) A rate of return consistent with the above objectives.

2, PARTICIPANTS

"Participants in the Marin County Pool are defined as Marin County, Marin Public School

Agencles, Marin Community College, Marin County Office of Education, districts under the
control of the County Board of Supervisors, autonomousfindependent districts whose
treasurer is the Director of Finance and any other district or agency approved by the Board of
Supervisors and the Director of Finance using the County of Marin as their fiscal agent.

(a) Statutory participants are those government agencies within the
County of Marin for which the Marin County Treasurer Is statutorily
designated as the Custodian of Funds,

(b) ©  Voluntary participants are other local agencies that may participate
in the Pooled Investment Fund, such as special districts and cities for which
the Marin County Treasurer is not statutorily designated as the Custodian of
Funds. Participation is subject to approval by the Director of Finance, and in
accordance with California Government Code Section 53684.




COUNTY OF MARIN

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY

3. AUTHORIZED PERSONS

Authorized persons for investment purposes include principal staff as designated by the
Director of Finance on the Authorized Investor List. Designated Principal Staff shall make all
investment decisions. To minimize the risk of disrupting the day to day business activities,
Principal Staff shall use separate means of travel to attend training and conferences.

All investment decisions shall be made with the care, skill, prudence and diligence, under the
circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent person acting, as a trustee, in a like capacity
and familiarity would use in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to
safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the participants.

4, 'BIDS & PURCHASE OF SECURITIES

Prior to the purchase of an investment pursuant to this policy the persons authorized to make
investments shall assess the market and market prices using information obtained from
available sources including investment services, broker/dealers, and the media. Bids for
various investments shall be evaluated considering preservation of capital as the most
important factor, liquidity as the second most important factor and thirdly, yield. Investments
in commercial paper, bankers acceptances and certificates of deposit for each issuer shall
be limited to five percent (6%) of Treasury assets, determined using the Treasury balance at
the time of purchase, except that investments in overnight commercial paper shall be limited
to seven percent (7%) of Treasury assets for any one issuer. The investment selected for
purchase shall be that investment which in the opinion of the purchaser most clearly meets
these objectives. All security transactions shall be documented at the time the transaction is
consummated. ' ‘

5, TERM

Maturities of investments in the Marin Counly Treasury Pool shall be selected based upon
liquidity requirements. The maximum remaining term to maturity for an investment shall be
three (3) years; except that, subject to the limitations set forth In Sections 53601 et seq. and
53635 et seq. of the California Government Code, the Director of Finance may authorize
investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and/or U.S. and local agency obligations with a
maximum remaining term to maturity that shall not exceed five () years. The weighted
average maturity of the investment pool, to be determined at the time of purchase, shall not
exceed 540 days to final maturity/call. '




COUNTY OF MARIN

. STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY

Capital Funds, Construction Funds, or money obtained through the sale of agency surplus
property, may be invested by the Director of Finance in specific investments outside of the
Pool provided the Director of Finance obtalns written approval from the governing board of
the County, School District or Special District. No investment shall have a remaining
maturity in excess of five (b) years.

Proceeds of Debt Issues set aside for repayment of any County, School District, or Special
District financings shall not be invested for a term that exceeds the term set forth in the
financing documents.

6. ALLOWED INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to California Government Cdde Sections 53601 et seq. and 53635 et seq., the '

County Director of Finance may invest in the following subject to the limitations as set forth:
(a) United States Treasury obligations.
(b) United States Agency obligations.
7 (c) Securities of U.S. Government Agencies & Instrumentalities
(d) State of California Bonds and Registered Warrants.

(e) Bonds, Notes, Warrants or other evidence of indebtedness of a
local agency within the State of California. '

i) Bankers acceptances not to exceed one hundred eighty (180) days
to maturity or at the time of purchase thirty percent (30%) of the treasury fund
balance.

(@) Commercial paper of "prime” quality of the highest letter and
numerical rating as provided for by Moody's_Investors Service, Inc., or
Standard and Poor's Corporation, to be chosen from among corporations
organized and operating_within the United States with assets in excess of
$500,000,000.00 and having an “A" or higher rating for the issuer's debt,
other than commercial paper, as provided for by Moody's Investors Service
or Standard and Paor's Corporation. Purchases of eligible commercial paper
may not exceed two hundred seventy (270) days in maturity and may not
exceed forly percent (40%) of the treasury fund balance.

(h) Negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-
chartered bank, a state or federal association or by a state-licensed branch of
a foreign bank selected on the basls of financlal stability and credit rating
criteria employed by the County Director of Finance. Negotiable cettificates
of deposit may not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the treasury fund balance.

5




COUNTY OF MARIN

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY

i) Non-negotiable certificates of deposit (Time Deposits) with a
nationally or state-chartered bank or a state or federal association selected
on the basis of financial stability, credit rating and reputation using criteria
employed by the County Director of Finance fully collateralized at one
hundred ten percent (110%) of market value with U.S. Government
Securities, high-grade Municipal Bonds, instruments of federal agencles,
including mortgage backed securities at one hundred fifty percent (150%) of
market value with promissory notes secured by first deeds of trust upon
improved residential real property as provided by the Government Code.

()] " Medium-term Notes rated "A” or better, to be chosen from among
corporations with assets in excess of $500,000,000.00 with a maturity not to
exceed two years from the date of purchase. Purchase of eligible

medium-term notes may not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the treasury fund

balance.

(k) Shares of beneficial Interest issued by diversified management
companies, which are money market funds investing in securities and
obligations as authorized by this investment policy. To be eligible for
investment these companies shall attain the highest ranking or the highest
letter and numerical rating provided by no less than two nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations and have assets under management In excess
of $500,000,000.00. The purchase price may not include any commissions
that these companies may charge, and the purchase of shares in any one
mutual fund may not exceed ten percent (10%) of the treasury balance and
the total invested my not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the treasury
balance. Shares of beneficial Interest issued by diversified management
companies may include shares in investment trusts established under
provisions of the California Joint Exercise of Powers Act.

{ Repurchase agreements on any Investment authorized by this
investment policy where the term of the agreement does not exceed one
year. The market value of securities that underlay a repurchase agreement
shall be valued at one hundred two percent (102%) or greater of the funds
borrowed against those securities, and the value shall be adjusted daily. The
County Director of Finance or designee must approve any collateral
substitution by the seller, and any new collateral should be reasonably
identical to the original collateral in terms of maturity, yield, quality and
liquidity.

(m)  California State Local Agency Investment Pool (LAIF) operated by
the State Treasurer's office.




COUNTY OF IMARIN

 STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PoLicY

(n) Financial Institution Investment Accounts All funds on deposit
with the County shall be managed by the Director of Finance. The Director of
Finance may, at his option, at the time of placement, place not more than five
percent (5%) of the Treasury assets at the time of Investment with a financial
institution for the purpose of managing such funds. Securities eligible for
purchase by the financial institution are limited to United States Treasury and
Agency obligations with a “AAA” credit quality rating, must be held in the
County’s name in a third party custody account, may not have a remaining
maturity In excess of three (3) years, and the account shall have an average
maturity of 1.5 years or less. All security transactions shall be supervised
and approved by designated staff on the Authorized Investor List.

Where a percentage limitation is specified for a particular category of
investments, that percentage Is applicable only at the time of purchase.

PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS

(a) The County Director of Finance shall not invest in any Derivatives
such as inverse floaters, range notes, or interest only strips that are derived
from a pool of mortgages or any security bearing a rate of interest which is
not known at the time of purchase.

(b) The County Director of Finance shall not invest any funds in any
security that could result in zero interest accrual if held to maturity or where
there is a risk of loss of principal when held to maturity.

(c) Reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending agreements
and all other investments that are not specifically allowed by this investment
policy are prohibited.

(d) In accordance with Marin County’s Nuclear Freeze Ordinance
Measure "A" (Exhibit 1) as approved by the voters on November 4, 1986, the
County is prohibited from investing in securities or other obligations of any
corporation or business entity which is a nuclear weapons contractor,

Furthermore, said corporations or business entities that the County Director
of Finance does invest in must file an affidavit as required by Measure "A”
Section VI. B certifying that neither it, nor its parent company, affiliates or
subsidiaries are nuclear weapons contractors. A copy of each affidavit
recelved shall be sent to the Peace Commission.




COUNTY OF MARIN

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY

8. BROKERS

Broker/dealers shall be selected by the Director of Finance upon recommendation by the
Investment Officer or designated principal staff on the Authorized Investor List. Selection of
broker/dealers shall be based upon the following criterla: the reputation and financial
strength of the company or financial institution and the reputation and expertise of the
individuals employed. The Director of Finance shall be prohibited from selecting any broker,
brokerage firm, dealer, or securities firm that has, within any 48 consecutive month period
following January 1, 1996, made a political contribution ‘in an amount exceeding the
limitations contained in Rule G-37 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, any
member of the Board of Supervisors, any member of the governing board of a local agency
having funds held in the County Treasury, or any candidate for those offices. The
broker/dealers shall be provided with and acknowledge receipt of the County Investment
Policy. :

9. WITHDRAWALS

No withdrawals from the Marin County Pool shall be made for the purpose of investing and
or depositing those funds outside the pool without the prior approval of the Marin County
Director of Finance. The Director of Finance shall evaluate each proposed withdrawal to
assess the effect the withdrawal will have upon the stability and predictability of the
investments in the County Treasury. Approval shall be given unless the. withdrawal will
adversely affect the Interests of the other depositors. Requests for withdrawals for the
purpose of investing or depositing funds outside the pool shall be made In writing at least ten
(10) business days in advance of the proposed withdrawal date. Notice in writing of at least
five (6) business days shall be required for withdrawals in excess of $250,000.00 for loan
repayments, capital expenditures and any expenditure not in the ordinary course of
operations.

10.  SWAPS

Securitiés can be swapped for other approved securities with similar maturity schedules to
gain higher rates of return. When a swap involves a change in liquidity, future cash needs
shall be conservatively estimated. ‘

11. . LOSSES

Losses are acceptable on a sale before maturity, and may be taken if the reinvestment
proceeds will earn an income flow with a present value higher than the present value of the
income flow that would have been generated by the original investment, considering any
investment loss or foregoing interest on the original investment.




R STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT POLICY

COUNTY OF MARIN

12.  DELIVERY & SAFEKEEPING

Delivery of all securities shall bé through a third party custodian. ‘Non-negotiable certificates
of deposit and notes of local agencies may be held in the Director of Finance's safe. The
County's safekeeping agent shall hold all other securities. No security shall be held in
safekeeping by the broker/dealer from whom it was purchased. Settlement payment in a
securities transaction will be against delivery only, and a Due Bill or other substitution will not
be acceptable. Persons authorized under section three (3) who did not originate the
investment transaction shall review all confirmations for conformity with the original
transaction.  Confirmations resulting from securities purchased under a repurchase
agreement shall state the exact and complete homenclature of the underlying securities
purchased.

13.  APPORTIONMENT OF INTEREST & COSTS

Interest shall be apportioned to all pool participants quarterly based upon the ratio of the
average daily balance of each individual fund to the average daily balance of all funds in the
investment pool. The amount of interest apportioned shall be determined using the cash
method of accounting whereby interest will be apportioned for the quarter in which it was
actually received. The Director of Finance shall deduct from the gross interest recelved
those actual administrative costs relating to the management of the treasury including
salaries and other compensation, banking costs, equipment purchased, supplies, costs of
information services, audits and any other costs as provided by Section 27013 of the
Government Code.

14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A member of the county treasury oversight committee, the County Director of Finance or
County employees working In the Treasurer's office shall not accept honoraria, gifts, and
gratuities from advisors, brokers, dealers, bankers, or other persons with whom the county
treasury conducts business, consistent with state law.

15.  AUDITS

The County of Marin investment portfolio shall be subject to a process of independent review
by the County's extemal auditors. The County's external auditors shall review the
investment portfolio in connection with the annual county audit for compliance with the
statement of investment policy pursuant to Government Code Section 27134. The results of
the audit shall be reported annually to the Director of Finance and the Marin County Treasury
Oversight Committee. '

15.1 Compliance Audit: Government Code Section 27134

The Treasury Oversight Committee shall cause an annual audit to be
conducted to determine the County Treasury's compliance with Article 6 of
the Government Code. This audit may include issues relating to the structure
of the investment portfolio and risk .




COUNTY OF MARIN

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PoOLICY

16 REVIEW

The Director of Finance and designated staff will perform a monthly review of the investment
function.

17.  REPORTS

The Director of Finance shall prepare a monthly report listing all investments in the County
Pool as of the last day of the month and a report of the average days to maturity and yleld of
investments in the County Pool. The Director of Finance shall also prepare a monthly report
for all non-pooled investments. These reports shall be distributed to the Marin County Board
of Supervisors, Superintendent of Schools, Marin Public School Agencies, Special Districts,
non-pooled investors, the County's Investment oversight committee, and any other
participant upon request.

18.  INVESTMENT POLICY

The County Director of Finance shall prepare and submit an annual statement of investment
policy to the Board of Supervisors. :

19. TREASURY OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

" Consistent with State law the County has established a Treasury Oversight Committee. The

Committee includes representatives from the County of Marin, Superintendent of Schools’
Office, School Districts and Special Districts. The Committee shall review and monitor the
Investment Policy as contained in California Government Code Sections 27130 — 27137.

10




COUNTY OF MARIN

. STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PoLICY

20. DISASTER/BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN

The County of Marin's banking and investment functions are mission critical and as such, the
office must have a business continuity plan.

The goal of a disaster/business recovery plan is to protect and account for all funds on
deposit with the county treasury and to be able to continue our banking and investment
functions for all participants in the event of an ocourrence (Earthquake, Fire, Pandemic or
other event) which disrupt normal operations. Our plan provides for the ability to perform our
banking and Investment function at an off-site location under less than optimal conditions
and, if needed, even outside our county.

In the event of an occurrence which precludes staff from being able to operate from our
office, the attached plan (exhibit 2) will be activated. The plan includes:

Scope

Chain of Command

Continuity Procedure

Functions and Tasks to be performed
Equipment and Emergency Packets
Disaster Asslgnment

Off-site locations

Normal processes may be modified in response to an occurrence. However, the county's
investment policy shall be strictly followed.




Dated: July 1,2019

Roy Given
Director of Finance

Reviewed and monitored by Marin Treasury Oversight Committee on
November 18, 2019 ’

Approved by Marin Gounty Board of Supervisors on
December XX, 2019

Attachments:

Exhibit 1 Marin County Nuclear Freeze Ordinance
Exhibit 2 Disaster/Business Continuity Plan
Exhibit 3 Authorized Investor List

12




COUNTY

‘@LV' TREASU

Dy ™

i

N 7 4
RNEN .

AUTHOR

" fft_:tlve: July 29, 2019

Investment Purposes:

1. To make investment decisions

2. Torecommend brokers
3. To perform a review of the investment function

" Authorized Persons:
utho zed to ake investment decisions for with a ma urit ofu to five years:

e RoyGiven* Director of Finance _

uthorized to e investment decisions for with a maturity of u to three years:

o KarenShaw*  Division Chi‘ef,llsinance
e MinaMartinovich =~ Assistant Dire_ctor of Finance
Authoti'zéd to make investment decisions for short term investments with a maturity of up to oné year:
o LisaDe Carlo Chief of lAdmInistraﬁve Services . .
e Bevin Gardner - Accountant Il -Treasury
e Sandra I(achéros ' Division Chief, Tax

*Authorized for equipment and emergency packets as defined under the Disaster/Business Con tinuity Plan

Approved: . '
M 2lal 14

Roy Given Date

Director of Finance

P.0 Box 4220 —San Rafael, CA 94913 — Clvic Center — Room 209 — Phone 415.473.6142 — Fax 415.473.3741 — CRS Dlal 711




COUNTY OF MARIN

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
DIsASTER RECOVERY/BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN
BANKING AND INVESTMENT FUNCTIONS

5

Scope

The County of Marin's banking and investment functions are mission critical. As such,
the Treasurer’s office must have a Disaster/Business Continuity Plan in place. Inthe
event we are unable to operate from our office, the plan shall be activated.
Periodically, the plan shall be tested.

The plan’s goal is to protect and account for all funds on deposit with the county and to
be able to continue our banking and investment functions for all participants in the

- event of occurrence (earthquale, fire, pandemic, or other event) which disrupts normal

operations.

Chain of Command
The chain of command shall be in the order of “authorized persons” as identified in the
Statement of Investment Policy, item 3.

Continuity Procedure

In the event we are unable to conduct normal business operations, the authorized
persons shall interact with one another by home phone, email or cell to decide on the
alternate location. If unable to contact one another, the authorized persons shall
through the county’s office of emergency services establish contact with one another.

Functions & Tasks to be Performed

Recognizing we may be operating in less than optimal conditions, the primary functions
are to protect and continue to account for all funds on deposit with the county. While
normal processes may be modified, the investment policy shall be strictly followed.

Tasks to be performed include:
¢ Daily cash work up

¢ Investment of maturing securities and any daily deposits after making an allowance
for checks/wires expected to clear

¢ Daily cash and bank reconciliation
¢ For deposits, the treasurer's office will notify county departments, special districts
and schools of any changes to their deposit location. Deposits to any account other

than those established by the treasurer's office are prohibited.

¢ Disbursement activity will be coordinated with the County Director of Finance
1




COUNTY OF MARIN

DEPARTIMENT OF FINANCE
DisASTER RECOVERY/BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN
BANKING AND INVESTIVENT FUNCTIONS

Equipment and Emergency Packets

The Authorized Investor List shall designate authorized staff to have the following
equipment such that either of them may carry out the plan. In the event that none of
the authorized persons are able to respond, the county's office of Emergency Services
shall have.a copy of this plan in a secured location within their office. All policies and
procedures of this plan shall be provided to the County Administrator and County
Director of Finance. ‘

The following equipment and items for the emergency packets are:

¢

Laptop with wi-fi connectivity

All software that is currently in use shall be loaded on each laptop and be set up for
remote access.

Copy of the Investment Policy and the Disaster/Continuity Recovery Plan
Updated monthly report of investments

Sign on instructions to access the county’s financial accounting system, online
banking and securities safekeeping

Listing of the home phones and addresses, cell, email addresses of the “authorized
persons” and treasury staff. Listings shall also mclude the County Administrator,
County Director of Finance, County Counsel and the Office of Emergency Services.

Bank, Authorized Broker/Dealers, Bloomberg and Security Safekeeping 'names,
contact numbers including fax and addresses

All district, county and school bank signature cards

Contact hames, numbers, emall and addresses of each agency whose funds are held
within the county.

Emergency check stack will be housed in the Office of Emergency Services located
at 1600 Los Gamos Drive (5o checks).*




COUNTY OF MARIN

DEPARTIMENT OF FINANCE
DISASTER RECOVERY/BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN
BANKING AND INVESTMENT FUNCTIONS

Disaster Assignment

The “authorized persons" in the treasurer’s office including support staff are to be
considered official Disaster workers and are assigned to support our Disaster/Business
Recovery Plan. Each shall have on their possession their County of Marin Identification
Card.

The level of disruption and assigned work location will be determined by the Director of
Finance, or those individuals indicated on the Authorized Investor List. All related costs
shall be absorbed by the Treasurer’s office and reimbursed pursuant to Government
section 27013.

In all cases, the safety of treasury personnel is paramount. In no event should our
alternate location or alternate procedure be employed if doing such would put an
individual in danger.

* Emergency checks are issued from a separate account which is linked to the County’s main account. These checks are to be used only if
this plan is activated and the county is unable to issue payments, Authorized signers for these checks are designated on the Deposit
Account Documentation Signature Card and include the Director of Finance, those individuals authorized under the Authorized Investor
Listand the County Administrator. In the event that check stock cannot be accessed, electronic payments through the County's banking
services can be originated.

Failing the ability to operate from our office, our operations will move to a location
‘determined by the County Office of Emergency Services, Director of Finance or County
Administrator.




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT

SCHEDULED BOARD MEETINGS

JANUARY
FEBRUARY
MARCH
APRIL

MAY

JUNE

JULY
AUGUST
SEPTEMBER
OCTOBER
NOV;EMBER

DECEMBER

31

28

27

24

22

26

24

28

25

23

27

25

Fourth (4") Friday of each Month — 9:00 A.M.
Unless Otherwise Stated on the Agenda
Except for November 27, 2020, and December 25, 2020 — City Holidays

2020

2020

12020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020 - HOLIDAY

2020 - HOLIDAY




